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The Earliest Predecessor

The predecessor of NCKU, Tainan
Technical College, was the first
technical college in Taiwan. In 1931,
the college was founded at the current
location of Cheng-Kung Campus. At
that time, the 178,200 m? campus was
twice larger than a school of the same
academic level in Japan. This reflected
the ambition of Taiwan Sdtokufu
{(Government-General of Taiwan) in
fostering industrial talents in Taiwan.

The enormous campus allowed the
school to have enough space for a
sports ground and a baseball field,
which reflect sports being the major
administering focus of Prof. Wakatsuki
Michitaka, the first president of the
college.

FHESEITEER  FEEERERT
FRIERRZ > RENA—FrLEER
EEBHNER - RN = ERIEER
BREEBENEYE BRT=M > BB
LERR IR MR o (U@ P4 L BY
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REMIINE > DRIBITHRAKE - BE -
EBLEERZXEEE > ERE2RIEE
ANEE - BRIENESEAUIRE
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As a technical college, it was essential
to emphasize both theories and
practices. To implement this vision, the
three buildings at the southeast end of
the campus were designed to provide
students enough room for training and
experiment.

Along the central axis stands the
college’s four original buildings—
Administration Building, the Lecture Hall,
the Physics and Chemistry Laboratory,
and the Library, which are designated
municipal heritage properties shared by
all departments. As the facade of the
college, these buildings carry a majestic
presence. Erected like a backbone, the
Library was designed to be located
at the heart of the campus as an
inspiration for students to place books
at the center of self-directed learning.
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(Students on the sports field. The sports field was located on what is now the Main Library)

| Back in Houjia

Nowadays, Houjia is simply the name
of a place for most students in NCKU.
However, for alumni who studied here
during the Japanese colonial period,
Houjia is the place that marked their
blooming prime.

In 1931, “Tainan Technical College of
the Taiwan Governor-General’s Office,”
the earliest predecessor of NCKU, also
established a campus in the Houjia
district. In the beginning, there were only
three departments: Applied Chemistry,
Electrical Engineering, and Mechanical
Engineering. In 1933, the two-storey
main administration building (nowadays
NCKU museum) was built. In front of
it lies a heart-shaped fountain, which

80 AFKE » IARIKILIE

{In 2011, a group of alumni from Japan
funded a monument in celebration of
NCKU's 80th anniversary.)

has served as a major venue for school
events. On the other side, the sports
ground at the back of the campus was
where sports, gymnastic activities, and
mandatory military training took place.
Beside the field lies the old student
dormitory, where the “ryoka” {unofficial
dormitory songs) once sung still seem
to linger, marking the memories of
belonging of ages past.

In 2011, a group of alumni from Japan
raised funds to build a monument in
celebration of the university’s 80th
anniversary as an appreciation for
their personal enlightenments back in
college.
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The Gate

At the intersection of Shengli Road and
University Road stands a pure white
gate, made in 1956 to celebrate the
upgrade of the college. The college had
been changed into Taiwan Provincial
College of Engineering after the colonial
period ended, and was renamed as
Provincial Cheng Kung University
upon the upgrade. Today, people often
question the awkward location of the
gate. Nevertheless, back in 1956, the

WERPIRARERETZ2AEMREE
Zekst > AERAENOEFIAER
REEBT —HEBHLENEZCRARE
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E—FrERTE B2 kXEZERE=
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ANERRRETLRNNARIELZ— 22021
F6 AREETHAXERAEAESE
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road was an artery that connected the
Cheng-Kung and Sheng-Li campuses,
then the only campuses of the
university, to the main avenue that led
toward the train station. The site was
therefore chosen as a portal that linked
the university with the outside world.

Designed by Professor Ho Chen-
Tsu of the Architectural Engineering
Department, the clean-edged white



frame rests on a pair of simplified
black Sumeru pedestals. The frame
represents the rationality and
precision engineering and science
call for. The overall ratio of the gate
is approximately 1:1.25, while the
opening above the pedestals was
designed to hold the golden ratio of
1:61. On the lintel, abstract clouds are
engraved to symbolize a university’s
academic freedom. The Sumeru
pedestals and cloud pattern uphold
a spirit of Chinese descent under the
westernized structure, which marked
the technical college’s transition to

O1 AKEESE The Founding Histo

a university with not only colleges of
Engineering, but also Business and
Liberal Arts. With these traditional
Chinese architectural elements, NCKU’s
University Gate is indeed an iconic post-
war modern architecture in Taiwan.
In June 2021, the Cultural Bureau of
Tainan City Government listed and
announced the gate as one of the city’s
historical architecture, which was a
major recognition toward its historical
significance.

AZP9 (The University Gate)

ry
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The Motto

NCKU's motto “ B8 ¥ B #0 " gidng-li-
zhi-zhT (officially translated as “Veritas
et Conscientia”) is a fusion of the neo-
Confucian ideologies advocated by
prominent neo-Confucianists Zhu
Xi and Wang Yang-Ming. The motto
combines the spirit of “seeking truth in
all things” from Wang and Zhu’s stance
for “thorough investigation of principle
and the extension of knowledge.”
Here, ‘qiéng’ stands for thorough,
while IT stands for truth and reality. Zhi
has multiple implications including
obtaining, extreme, and extension. The
last character zhi can be knowledge,
intellect, and conscience. With these
choice of words, the founders of the
NCKU hoped that the university may be a
sanctuary for knowledge and a fortress
for ethics and conscience.

092
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On July 25, 1957, the First Bureau of the
Presidential Office issued a document
to the college along with the “ 8 12 B
%0 ” calligraphy work written and given
by President Chiang. Later in the same
year, the college passed the decision
of making the given phrase its school
motto in a faculty meeting. When the
college was upgraded to a university
in 1956, the plagque with “Veritas et
Conscientia” inscription was attached to
the new gate on University Road. Apart
from the original meaning, the “Be poor,
and You'll Know” homophonic version,
which has been widespread among
students, also adds a grassroots vibe to
the philosophy.
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A YR g R IERMIKAI 2 S
(The calligraphy of school motto collected in NCKU museum)
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The Phoenix Trees

When people walk through Siaocdong
Road and the Chiang Kai-shek
Gymnasium in the midsummer season,
the flamboyant blossom of Royal
Poinciana, also known as phoenix
tree, warms the hearts of many with
its flaming glory. Year after year,
the graduates sing the age-old Auld
Lang Syne in this season of farewell.
The blazing red petals reflect the
heartwarming hospitality of Southern
Taiwan, which are cordial and genuine.
The blooming phoenix trees resemble
blazing fire, which generates the heating
energy that empowered the earliest
machines. The flower is therefore
chosen to be the floral emblem and the
main element of NCKU’s university logo.

BEER A AT S thi@EE T 5155
R » MAF S ECERNELAULHS »
BIMEESLIEA ~ SBISC2 8 (FR BB &
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RERARENAXEZRERETIERN
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For the students and faculty of NCKU,
the phoenix is full of implications. Many
major events are named after the plant.
These include the Phoenix Literary
Award, the long-honored tradition that
encourages literary creation, alongside
performance and exhibition events such
as Phoenix Theatre and Phoenix Gallery.
Moreover, A Journal of the Phoenix
Tree Association, a memoir written by
Japanese alumni born in Taiwan during
the colonial period, also honors the tree
in the book's entitlement. These are the
traces of evidence that the phoenix tree
stands not only as a beauty in nature,
but also an emblem of liberal arts and
creativity in NCKU.
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BBTE (The Phoenix Tree)
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Birds on Campus

Located in the center of Tainan City,
NCKU’s vast greenery and asset-rich
ecosystem turns the university into an
oasis in the urban jungle. Hundreds of
tree species on campus are the perfect
habitat for birds of various breeds.

Crested goshawks build their saucer
nests in tall trees with dense leaves,
like the rain trees by Yoyo Pond. On
the lawns, Malayan night herons often
stand gracefully, waiting for their prey.
At the Minor East Gate Remains, one
would often hear the “wi-wi-wi” calls of
Black-naped monarchs, also known as
the bird with fabric dyes. In April and

15
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May, Muller's barbets sing "kuo-kuo-kuo”
in their jade-green and colorful plumage.
The blackboard trees are their favorite
place to peck and nest. Besides these
birds, the warbling white-eye, spotted
dove, light-vented bulbul, and black-
crowned night heron are also common
species on campus.

In between the leaves and on carpets of
green, these lovely birds shall be found
by all who pay attention and behold the
wonder of nature.
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The Cheng-Kung cleome (Cleome rutidosperma DC.)

In NCKU, a plant is named after the
university as the “Cheng-Kung cleome,”
which was originally discovered in
between the wall edges and ditch covers
on campus. Unlike the stems of normal
cleomes, which are vertical in structure,
these cleomes are decumbent, and are
also known as fringed spider flowers.

Indigenous to tropical Africa and
northern Australia, these purple cleomes
were first found on the Cheng-Kung
Campus by Prof. Kuoh Chang-Sheng
from the Department of Life Science
and Prof. Wu Tian-Shung from the
Department of Chemistry. With a height
ranging from 10 to 20 c¢cm, the annual
herb consists of alternate trifoliate

17

leaves. Its 4 clawed petals come in pink
or purple, while its capsule dehisces into
two valves, carrying numerous seeds on
its linear stipe. In Taiwan, these purple
cleomes are found on roadsides, along
riverbanks, and in wastelands of low-
altitude areas. It is commonly seen
in Central and Southern Taiwan, and
is often found at wall corners and in
fissures. Its elaiosome attracts ants, and
elicits seed dispersal. Cleome leaves
are food for the larvae of Leptosia
nina, Pieris rapae, and Appias olferna.
In NCKU, traces of purple cleomes are
found on every campus lawn and in wall
corners and crevices.
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BB TES (The Cheng-Kung Cleome)
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The Golden Shower Trees

Besides the blazing phoenix flowers, the
golden cassia fistula also blooms every
May and June. The cheerful blossoms of
red and gold form a charming melody on
campus.

Cassia fistula, also known as Golden
Chain Tree, golden shower, purging
cassia, Indian laburnum, Kani Konna and
pudding-pipe tree, is widely grown in
Southeast Asia. Its flower is the national
flower of Thailand. After the flowers
withered, dark brown cylindrical pods
would cover the branches. The falling
petals rain down romantically like a
golden shower, from which its name
derived. Its beauty is appreciated on
campuses including Cheng-Kung, Sheng-

BRI RS~ N7 B% - REERE
BREEENET o
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HERIRY » A > SETERETN
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Li, Cheng-Hsing, Li-Hsing, Tzu-Chiang,
and Dong-Ning.

In its full bloom, strings of Cassia
fistula flowers would hang on top of the
branches like wind chimes. As the gentle
wind blows, its gold petals fall like snow.
The enchanting golden shower of petals
would turn the east end of Tzu-Chiang
Campus and the east-west axis that
leads Cheng-Kung Campus to Kuang-Fu
Campus into a golden avenue, inviting
passersby to spare a moment for this
magical season.
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FlEh$h (Cassia fistula)
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The Osmanthus Fragrans and Professor Iso

Momose

Professor Iso Momose, a chemical
engineering expert, was one of the first
faculty members of NCKU’s predecessor,
Tainan Technical College, hired in 1932.
After WWII, Prof. Momose still stayed
and taught for a few years under the
recruitment of the KMT government.

Prof. Momose's oldest daughter, Miycko
Momose (later known as Miyoko |zumi
after marriage), was born and raised
in Tainan. As a Taiwan-born Japanese,
Miyoko shared a close bond with the
island. At her passing, she even donated
half of her wealth to NCKU to fund the
“Prof. Iso Momose and Ms. Miyoko
lzumi Scholarship Fund” in remembrance

of her father and her love for Tainan.

On September 9, 2017, the donation
ceremony was held in the exhibition
hall for “Professor Iso Momose Cultural
Relics Exhibition” in the History Museum
on Kuang-Fu Campus. On the west side
of the museum, former President Huey-
Jen Jenny Su, along with the son of Ms.
Miyoko Izumi and his family, planted an
osmanthus fragrans (also commonly
known as sweet olive), which was Prof.
Momose’s favorite tree. The tree stands
in commemoration of the spirit of Prof.
Momose and Ms Miycko lzumi in their
commitment to the students.
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(The osmanthus fragrans now)

osmanthus fragrans in 2017)

BEER ¢ T P S
i

e | "’;D 2

R SRS AR
(The "Prof. Iso Momose and Ms. Miyoko Izumi Scholarship Fund"

Donation Ceremony)

22



BEuAMARKEN EEESB®FM  NCKU Cultural Assets & Heritage Sites Guide Book

Rt LT EL T L

B AZRANENRERE > LAD
FEM —FrEITER o ITAEENE
fiTfEm > sEIERTERKRRE > Mx
HEMPTR > FEFAZ BTN ° K
ARBAXEMEREILR 1998 FH

MM 423R e[ - (LARBERMEKRRE] ° &
REEEARESBRENBRNZSER
B BUERE LRSI T - KA RIEE

I Art on Campus

With nearly 100 pieces of exquisite
sculptures installed on campus, an
artistic aura equals to an art academy
permeates the university. These art
installations among luxuriant but
well-spaced flowers and verdure
are gradually acquired. At first, the
foundation of public art on campus was
laid in an exhibition entitled “The Dawn
of the Century: Sculptures in NCKU”
in 1998. With the hard work of Prof.
Hsiao Chong-Ray and the support of
former president, Prof. Weng Cheng-l,
nearly 100 pieces of public art placed
on campus attracted crowds of visitors
during the exhibition. It was deemed a

23
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major event in the art circles of Taiwan.

A decade after the success of “The
Dawn of the Century,” Professor Hsiao
organized “The Dialogue between
Generations: Campus Arts Festival”
in 2009. The two art events have
accumulated immense art energy
and laid the foundation that shaped
the campus art and landscape of the
university today.
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NCKU Museum

Established in 2007, NCKU Museum was
the first museum included in a university
constitution in Taiwan. Under the idea
of making it a museum that reflects the
campus environment in its entirety, both
campus plants and historical heritages,
including those in the exhibitional halls
of various departments, are considered
to be part of NCKU Museum.

Built in 1933, the current museum
building, which is now a municipal
heritage, was originally the
administration building of Tainan
Technical College. The architecture
consists of a two-storey central building
flanked by a pair of one-storey wings.
Steel and concrete were used to
reinforce the traditional brick structure.
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Under the steel roof structure, external
walls are covered with 13-groove tiles,
which were extremely popular at the
time. In 1977, another storey was added
to the wings, making the entire building
the two-storey building today.

Situated on the 2nd floor, the first school
president’s office, now the exhibition
room “The History of NCKU," preserves
some of the oldest furniture and original
structures. In other exhibition rooms,
valuable collections and research
results of faculty and student members
are displayed accordingly. Ever since its
inauguration, the museum has invited
all guests to visit this building full of
historical significance, and envision the
future by looking into the past.




Cheng-Kung Campus
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(The original outside view of the present day NCKU museum)

A TESIEE (NCKU Museum)
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| The 01d Buildings
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It has been nearly nine decades since
the establishment of the university.
From the earliest Cheng-Kung Campus
to today’s comprehensive university
with 12 colleges and 11 campuses, the
development of NCKU has never ceased.
With buildings one after another, the
skyline of the university continues to
evolve, reshaping the landscape on
campus today.

Among all buildings, the oldest
remains to be the Physical Chemistry
Lab (currently the south wing of the
Physics Department) on the Cheng Kung
Campus.
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This modest single storey building was
built in 1930, and stood as the only
building back when the university first
started in April 1931. This was not
only the place where the first freshman
orientation was held, but has also
served a variety of purposes including
the joint laboratory of all departments,
infirmary, lecture hall, faculty office, and
storage. Some of the classrooms have
kept the original design even to this day.
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1931 SRR > 2REBA RS BERERE

(When the school was founded in 1931, there was only one building)

YHERIERM ) RIBCRERE
(The oldest university building: The Old Physical Chemistry Laboratory)
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The Forgotten Bell

In the north, National Taiwan University
{NTU) owns a Fu Bell, to which the bell
in NCKU is in many ways “related.” In
1951, the military personnel of the
60th Arsenal of Combined Logistics
Command completed the casting of FU
Bell. In the following year, Prof. Chin Ta-
Chun, former president of NCKU, also
filed an application for the casting of
the same model, which was completed
by the end of 1952. Years later, the FU
Bell in NTU was remade in 1964 after
cracks were found on the criginal bell.
Therefore, in terms of chronology, this
bell at NCKU can be deemed as the
“uncle” of the current FU Bell in NTU.
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The university bell of NCKU was
first installed east of the Chemistry
Department on Cheng-Kung Campus.
The bell was first hung in a simple
metal frame and bore the mission of
announcing class periods and breaks. By
the end of the 90s, the chime function
was replaced by digital speakers, and
the bell was then moved to the southern
end of Engineering Avenue, and installed
on top of a tall cement base. Later in
2013, the bell was removed again due
to campus revamping. Perhaps one
day in the future, it will be a part of the
university’s outdoor landscape again.



O3 BEMMEE Cheng-Kung Campus

RERENLE  S{ERFRERE 1990 FRRERBHTE TR XER R

{The earliest location of the NCKU Bell, hanging {From 1990sto 2013, the NCKU Bell was
on the east side of today's Chemistry Department located on the south end of the Engineering
building} Avenue)

BRI TE R A 1Y ER R 8
{The NCKU Bellnow is currently stored in NCKU Museum)
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The President's Court Uniform

On September 5, 2023, former President
Michitaka Wakatsuki’'s court uniform(
official court dress of the Empire of Japan)
was designated as a “general antiquity” by
the Tainan City Government, making the
court uniform the first legitimate cultural
heritage among all university’'s artifact
collections.

Michitaka Wakatsuki, the first president
of the university’s predecessor, Tainan
Technical College from 1931 to 1941,
was a Chokuninkan, the highest ranking
civil officer under the Taiwan Sotokufu.
During the decade, the imperial civil officer
uniform was the president’s official attire

in all state functions. The set of uniform
is composed of ten units including a coat,
vest, trousers, sword, sword belt, sheath,
hat, hatbox, tie, and suspenders.

In the summer of 2013, Ms. Naoko
Wakatsuki, the wife of the former
president’s son, generously donated this
grand uniform, which had been a family
treasure for more than half a century. Ever
since then, the uniform has been one of
the university’s most adored collections.
The embroidery pattern of 5-7 Paulownia is
a symbol of the Cabinet. The design of the
uniform blends the essence of Japanese
and western culture, and shares a close



connection with the development of higher
education in Tainan. Today, the exquisite
embroidery and tailorship of the court
uniform is a rare gem among all the official
court dresses of the Meiji era in Taiwan.

From 2014 to 2016, the NCKU Museum
entrusted the Research Center For
Conservation of Cultural Relics of National
Taiwan Normal University to hire textile
restoration expert Yoshie Ishii from Tokyo

O3 BEMMEE Cheng-Kung Campus

Research Institute for Cultural Properties
to restore the court uniform to its former
glory. With the restoration, the court
uniform was displayed again in its best
condition during the tenth anniversary of
NCKU Museum:.

EEPREE AR

(The court uniform in restoration)
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The Black Friday of NCKU

The Black Friday of NCKU does not
refer to a specific Friday in a year, but
the day for the university's weekly
exam on general subjects, such as
calculus, general physics, and general
chemistry. The exam took place in
the small auditorium (nowadays Ge-
Chi Hall) every Friday after school,
usually in the evenings. Students had
to endure not only the challenge of the
exams, but also the heat and mosquitos.
These exams were extremely hard to
pass. This demanding tradition, though
mentally and physically painstaking, is
an unforgettable memory for alumni
from the Engineering College.

Bt FRALFESR T EEEMNE
BHEhRERES TBEE) X8
BHREMANME (KEH - 2534)

BREZIBMRNMER - BEREZEA
BEHIES » BEATRRERRERTE
= AWk TB=E) 2E% - B
BEREBBERBENGER  2ERKX
—FBEER RN —RANEA B
BER BTEENEREEENE
SEERBRERIASTEEEND -

Besides Fridays being called the
Black Friday, the Ge-Chi Hall was also
nicknamed “slaughterhouse.” Rumors
even say that the ponds {(Yoyo Pond
and Mongmong Pond) next to the
auditorium were filled by tears. As the
student body increased, the Ge-Chi Hall
was no longer adequate for joint exams.
The auditorium was thereby “released”
from its duty as a “slaughterhouse.”
Nevertheless, the highly demanding
academic tradition has persisted in
other tests, quizzes, and internships.
With a solid foundation and professional
competency, NCKU graduates have
always been highly popular among the
workforce.
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IR E (Ge-Chi Hall) BET/IMSE (SHNE) ETEEnRE
{Students taking exams in the small
auditorium)

HE (SHENE) &5
(An old photo of the auditorium)
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Hsin Yuan

Built in 1933, Hsin Yuan served as the
president’s residence in the earlier years
of the university. It was built under the
highest standard of Japanese official
residence in Tainan.

Classical Japanese room style and
garden are found throughout the estate.
The overall layout was designed by
technician Kuliyama Shunichi from
the Construction and Maintenance
Department of Taiwan Sotokufu. His
idea of official residence included the
arrangement of positioning the kitchen
and bathroom in the east end while
keeping the reception and study rocom in
the west end of the building. This design
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not only corresponds to a Japanese
lifestyle, but also reflects an adaptation
of the subtropical climate in Taiwan.
Reinforced concrete was employed
both externally and internally. The steel
roof frames in particular stand out
among other common Japanese official
residences of the era, which were mostly
made of wood.

With the government's lack of
guesthouses in the South in the
beginning of the post-war era, the
building was transformed into a
guesthouse, and has been known by the
name Hsin Yuan ever since.
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HER R

(Current condition of Hsin Yuan)
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BB 248 (The old main library)



I The Old Main Library

Completed in 1959, the old main library
stands as one of the most epochal modern
architectures built during the post-war US
aid era. Its rectangular look reflects the
functional approach of modernism, which
rejects any ornamentation unrelated to its
purpose. By accentuating the simplicity
of horizontal and perpendicular lines, the
building radiates the aesthetics of well-
balanced geometrical design.

The T-shaped layout of the building renders
the reading areas high ceiling spaces
{4.4 meters tall on every floor). The giant
southern and northern side windows are
casement windows, which enhance natural
ventilation and lighting, creating a great
reading environment for all readers.

At the back of the library lies the stack
rooms with a lower ceiling height of 2.25
meters. Every two floors of stack rooms
correspond to one reading area, giving
the librarians a convenient access to the
books while maximizing the usage of the
ceiling space. Although the stack rooms

G4 BFIHE sheng-Li Campus

are located at the east and west ends,
their vertical shades reduce direct sunlight,
thereby providing an ideal relative humidity
for book storage. Likewise, each and every
design of the building was based on the
functions and purpose of a library.

During the US aid era, the university
had a lot of collaboration and exchange
programs with Purdue University in the
States, who introduced some of the latest
architectural concepts through sharing its
vast library and information resources. This
led to the trend of adopting modernism in
both architecture and teaching methods
in the late 50s. Besides the old library,
buildings including Yun Qing Xuan, the
third dining hall, and the student center
on Cheng-Kung Campus are all typical
modern architectures. Among all these
buildings, the old main library stood as
a symbol of the collaboration between
NCKU’s Architecture Department and the
Civil Engineering Department of Purdue
University.

6@ IZE (The northern facade)
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In Memory of Prof. Su Xue-Lin

Prof. Su Xue-Lin (1897-1999), who
studied under Hu Shih and abroad in
France, was known as one of the first
generation female writers in the modern
history of Chinese literature. Her “Green
Sky” and "Thorny Heart” won critical
acclaim and hold a significant place in
the history of contemporary Chinese
literature. Su was the only May Fourth
writer who lived and spent her last days
in Taiwan.

Prof. Su first taught in Taiwan Provincial
College (today’s National Taiwan Normal
University) before her NCKU teaching
career began in 1956. This was the year
the Chinese Literature Department of
NCKU was established under the Liberal

43

Arts College due to the school’s upgrade
to a university. To honor her mother,
Prof. Su named the faculty dormitory she
lived in “Chun Hui (Spring Light) Study.”
For the next half of the 20th century,
she dedicated her life to teaching,
academic research, writing, and botany,
and cherished the simple lifestyle of a
scholar.

After WWIl, NCKU went through a period
of rapid development with the US aid.
From 1953 to 1958, the number of
students multiplied from 1000 to 2300.
The demand for staff dormitories also
boosted along with the increase of
faculty members. Buildings one after
another were built to accommodate
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the need. The former residence of Completed in 1956, Prof. Su’s modest
Prof. Su and other faculty dormitories  abode still shines a ray of memory in
at Dongning Road are single storey remembrance of Prof. Su Xuelin after
brick duplexes built during this stage.  more six decades.

BT HERN (Prof. Su Xue-lin)

LRRN ERRNERN,

- ] BTN BN
= {Former residenee of Prof. Su Xuelin)

44



0S5

RERE
Dong-Ning Campus

EBBE | RAYHRE ———— 47
EMEE /| mEBEET —— 49




Chang Rong Road 830 5

S
Tzu-Chiang Campus

REE Dong Ning Road

Lin Sen Road gegysr



| ZRBEE mxynm

AIEEARBBET F L —EIKRE
ERANHREE EERREER
71994 52 BERMOERE 458
REMES - ERFANKRESRAER
HISES > BN 19335 THRE
2021 BT UL R IR BRokE -

Bt ZTEBRATEE 4 REFRQALCERE
TrHEFNRBUIS RERALIFE
FaREMESREREHME  TBE

I NCKU Kindergarten

In February 1994, former president Prof.
Maa Jer-Ru opened a kindergarten to
look after the children of faculty and
staff members. The old school buildings,
originally faculty dormitories built
in 1933, were later demolished after
the kindergarten shifted to its current
premise in 2021.

Initially, the kindergarten served
as a private institution. Under the
policy of inclusive public education,
the government later funded the
reconstruction of the school’s transition
into a non-profit kindergarten. The
leading architect then incorporated
the history on site into the new design
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by wrapping the new buildings around
the original four dormitory buildings,
which are all connected to an outdoor
area visible from each classroom. The
students can also enjoy a touch of
nature by following the passage that
leads to the bridge on the second floor,
where the treetop of an age-old camphor
tree is within reach.

In the present day, regeneration has
been a renovation trend. Here in NCKU,
the kindergarten is indeed a perfect
reflection of such trend.
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ERRHE/NERFZ1THE A (Teachers and students taking a walk on campus)
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Prof. Huang Kun-Yan (1933-2012), was
the first dean of NCKU Medical College.
In 1982, Prof. Huang returned from the
States to work as the consultant and
executive secretary in the establishment
committee for NCKU Medical College
and NCKU Hospital. Completed in 1982,
this house designed by architect Wu
Ming-Hsiu was Prof. Huang’s residence
from 1983 to 1995.

To commemorate Prof. Huang Kun-Yan’s
dedication to the medical college, the
university decided to keep the residence
after his passing. The building has
been renovated into a guesthouse for
Epidermolysis Bullosa (EB) patients
in the International Center for Wound
Repair and Regeneration. EB patients
can book a stay at the guesthouse
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I The Former Residence of Prof. Huang Kun-Yan

before and after a treatment.
Besides maximizing the usage of the
building, the hospitality manifested
through the guesthouse also breaks
the stereotypical image of medical
treatment, which is often considered to
be distant and cold. As a part of “holistic
health care,” the former residence
serves as a demonstration that seeks to
overturn the social inequality of doctor-
patient relationship. As a guesthouse,
the former residence stands as an
embodiment of Prof. Huang’s motto:
“Before you become a doctor, become a
man.”

M PHE ™ME TTHIE B

|
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2024 FREENERR
(The status of the former residence of Prof. Huang Kun-Yan in 2024)
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TER RIS B BR8N BRPIIE L (The remains on the ground and sidewalks of Shengli Road)

I Minor East Gate Remains and Tainan

Prefectural City Wall

In 1725, Taiwan{Tainan) Fucheng was
first built to be a wooden barrier city. The
walls were later replaced by mud walls
after the Lin Shuang-Wen Incident in 1788.
Today's Minor East Gate Remains are
the reconstructed mud structure built in
1788. Located at the east end of Kuang-Fu
Campus, the wall is the longest remaining
heritage among all old city walls in Tainan.

The mud walls of the city gate consist of a
variety of mud structures, such as rammed
earth and a central layer of mud mixed with
oyster shell pieces. To properly conserve
the remains of the gate, the university
restored parts of the gate wall during 2012
to 2014. Half of the wall was restored to
its original design, while the other half kept
the entangled banyan roots. Above the
wall, a new overpass was built for visitors
to cherish a diversified restoration with a
fusion of now and then.

Apart from the city wall remains, the nearby
underground ruins of a barbican structure
were also excavated. The barbican was
covered by Prof. Liu Yi-Chang and Prof.
Lee Der-Her in 2010. With a diameter of
62 meters, the semi-circular wall is a lot
bigger than the Great South Gate, which is
only 40 meters in diameter. The foundation
of its main gatehouse is located next to
the nowadays east end scooter parking lot
at Yun-Ping Administration Building. The
massive barbican structure was found from
Shengli Road all the way to the scooter
parking lot on Cheng-Kung Campus and
the enclosure of Hsin Yuan. To this very
day, curves of the original beige stones can
still be found along the asphalt ground and
sidewalks of Shengli Road. These stones
mark both the location of the original
Minor East Gate, and NCKU's long-term
dedication in heritage conservation.
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The Minor West Gate

The Minor West Gate nearby Cheng Kung
Lake is a unique landmark of NCKU. The
gatehouse was horizontally moved from
the east end of the city to the west end,
which resulted in the original facade
turning towards the city. Above the
outside-in gate, the top layer gatehouse
was horizontally flipped. The transition
and reconstruction of the Minor West Gate
tells the story of NCKU being a pioneer of
architectural heritage conservation in the
city.

Today, the original Minor West Gate is
located close to the intersection of Ximen
and Fugian Road, the same way it was
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placed at a major route in its earlier days.
In 1930, Japan’s Historical Sites, Places
of Scenic Beauty, and Natural Monuments
Preservation Law was also enforced in
Taiwan. In an announcement entitled
“Tainan City” the Government-General of
Taiwan listed the Minor West Gate, Great
East Gate, and Great South Gate as historic
properties under legal protection in 1935.
To protect the site, the government then
mapped

out a roundabout around the Minor
West Gate, and started clearing houses
encompassing the area.

When the war ended, all of Japan's historic



site preservation works ceased to be valid.
The half-finished roundabout project of
the Minor West Gate was thereby halted. It
wasn’'t until 1968 that the city government
then planned to move the Minor West
Gate to a site nearby Wufei Temple for
road expansion. Nevertheless, on account
of former president Prof. Luo Yun-Ping s
countless negotiations with the government,

OB HERE Kiang-Fu Campus

an agreement was made to move the gate to
Kuang-Fu Campus instead. The Minor West
Gate is therefore located among the Minor
East Gate Remains alongside the old city
wall today. This has been a popular spot for
pictures, and is great for both tranquility and
adventure.
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BK24 Steam Locomotive

Behind the post office of Kuang-Fu
Campus parked BK24, currently the
third oldest surviving steam locomotive
in Taiwan. It was made by Kisha Seizo
Joint Stock Company in 1904 as work
#19, and was the last locomotive model
made by the company.

The model had first been developed in
England, then imported to Japan in large
quantities starting from 1887. When the
Railway Department of Taiwan Sotokufu
was purchasing trains in 1899, BK 24
was on top of the list for its outstanding
performance. From 1904 to 1908, a
total of 15 locomotives were imported,
serving as prominent engines for the
construction of the Western Trunk Line.
Among these engines, twelve out of the
fifteen locomotives were imported from
England, while three of them were made
by Kisha Seizo.

o Heh 12 B EEED > 3WAEA
BEHHIE ) BK24 ZHRESHRIEN
Bi&—dmtkREE o

MEIZEH BK24 BIEZE P EE
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AIEETED > BRI 1954 FHEF
RIK o BHEE AR 1956 FREURIBEE
HBRA ARERANIT > 1958 F
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When BK 24 arrived in Tainan, it first
served in Tainan and Takao (present day
Kaohsiung). By the end of the colonial
period, it was transferred to Taichung,
where it retired in 1954, Later, NCKU’s
Department of Transportation and
Communication Management Science,
established in 1956, fought for its
relocation. The locomotive was then
moved to NCKU in 1958. Parts of the
structure were cut open for teaching
purposes. For over half a century,
this classic model has been a silent
companion to those in NCKU, and a
must-see attraction for railfans.
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BK24 ZEF 4RI (BK24 Steam Locomotive)
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Regiment)
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(The Industrial Design Department,
one of the dormitories of Second
Infantry Regiment)
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I The Garrison of the Second Infantry Regiment

Originally, the Kuang-Fu Campus was
the barrack of Japan's Second Infantry
Regiment of the Formosan Garrison,
which was one of Taiwan’s only two
imperial infantry regiments established
in 1907. Prior to the establishment, the
Japanese army had already sought out
this highland on the right bank of Deging
River in 1899 as the location for the
construction of permanent barracks. The
first phase of the construction began in
1902. These now-demolished barracks
were later used briefly as the department
buildings for the College of Business
after the university took over the site in
1966.

None of these five remaining buildings
were built in the first phase of
construction. Three of the remaining
buildings {(today’s Departments of
History, Industrial Design, and Institution
of Art Studies), built in the second phase
during 1910 to 1913, are now designated
national monuments. The other two

buildings are used as military instructor’s
office and History Archives respectively.

With experiences from the first phase,
and Japan’s victory in the Russo-
Japanese War, which coincided with
the period of construction, barracks
built in the second phase were the
most magnificent among all permanent
barracks in Taiwan.

The western style porch along with
continuous arches are the embodiment
of the commanding imperial army.
Considering the unique environment
context in Taiwan, elevated reinforced
concrete slabs, cloisters, and steel
frames were implemented. In 1911, a
model of the barracks was displayed
in the World Hygiene Conference in
Germany. The barracks are the remaining
few barracks from the Japanese colonial
period, and therefore are highly valued
for its rarity.

BIAZAAE » BT EETB AR

(The original command center of Second Infantry Regiment, now Institution of Art Studies)

60



BEuAMARKEN EEESB®FM  NCKU Cultural Assets & Heritage Sites Guide Book

| KFHE s

RRERA 5 ANLHZHRNZBEE
RgREEnEE > EP it AiE
Bl HERENEEH  EERAERYN
BRiEMR - EREHIR FHENE
M UNRERENEE  ABICEX
F (BMERABAMEE) 71923 F (K
E12%F) 4821 HTR (FAR) B
By > FRFRAE ©

ERNABEREEAENEES RS
BHER  EMEENEENEERES

I The Banyan Garden

The giant banyan trees are a common
first impression of NCKU. The greatest
of them all was planted in 1923 by the
Crown Prince Hirohito (later Emperor
Showa).

Back then, the banyan garden was used
for foot drill, while the surrounding
buildings were the southern army
command center, which have become
the buildings for the Departments
of History, Industrial Design, and the
Institute of Art Studies. Lush and lively,
the banyan garden remained to be part
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of Kuang-Fu Barrack for the ROC Armed
Force after WWII. It wasn't until 1966
that the entire barrack was handed
over to the university and changed
into Kuang-Fu Campus. Ages after the
twists and turns, the banyan tree Prince
Hirohito planted remains abundant, and
has always been the most popular photo
spot during the graduation season.
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(The Banyan Garden)
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The Cheng Kung Lake and the Kuang-Fu

Sports Field

Though the architectures were classic
and elegant, back when the school was
still a providential university, the campus
still lacked a scenic spot for peace and
tranquility. However, amidst financial
difficulty, it was nearly impossible
to reserve the landscaping budget
for an artificial lake. Nonetheless, a
coincidence achieved the marvel. During
Prof. Luo Yun-Ping’s term of office as
the president of the university, a large
sports field was planned to be built on
the Kuang-Fu Campus as a recreational
area. To save the cost, the soil needed

to pave the foundation of the field was
dug up directly from an adjacent land
on campus, which later became the
Cheng Kung Lake. Carrying a part of one
another, the two recreational sites were
born. This wonderful coincidence is an
imprint of the spirit of sustainability,
which inherits the past and ushers the
future.
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FEIRIE (Kuang-Fu Sports Field)

A (Cheng Kung Lake)
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Taking the Oath

On the ceramic relief mural at the
Shyr-Chyuan Square next to the library
of NCKU Medical College states the
Hippocratic Qath in Chinese. All intern
doctors are required to take the oath
here at the mural on their first day of
internship. The calligraphy was written
by Prof. Huang Kun-Yan, the founding
dean of NCKU Medical College, then
molded and kilned at Meinong.

The Hippocratic Qath is the canonical
text for all doctors. Having all interns
take the oath in front of this aesthetic
calligraphy mural projects the hope
of fostering both scientific ethics and
humanistic qualities in all medical

MERES) IRMBRORBAGS
BRORBMTIARRANTERZR
LERSEEETR U EEERER
DREEBEREE > TRAXEEA - K
BHEEEE  BRREFEEFFE
BENTRAES - ER ABRAEN
BERRAERE RESEHERXESER
Z R8T - It AR R FREE -
YR EZENTER  RREBEHE
BIRR o

students.

The square was named after Dr. Hahn
Shyr-Chyuan, who was a medical doctor
in Tainan during the colonial period. Dr.
Hahn dedicated his life to public health
issues, cultural education, politics,
and other social affairs. He spent his
lifetime trying to eliminate inequality,
and saved countless lives throughout
his occupation. At the founding of NCKU
Medical College, Dr. Hahn Liang-Cheng
donated for the making of this ceramic
mural to encourage students to keep
medical ethics at heart.




i@ Cheng-Hsing Campus
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The Hippocratic Oath on the mural is considered as the starting point of a intern doctor.
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I The Edison-Hopkinson Dynamo

71

The Edison-Hopkinson Dynamo at the
Department of Electrical Engineering
was imported during the Japanese
Colonial Period. The machine was
likely purchased for teaching purposes.
Manufactured by Salford Iron Works,
owned by Mather & Platt in Manchester,
England, the machine {with a dimension
of 1.42 x 0.83 x 1.42 meters; 1.7 Mg)
had been refined by Dr. John Hopkinson
under the authorization of Thomas
Edison, and is capable of generating 105
volts and 144 amps.

The dynamo was not only wide-
spread for its practicality, making it
an important milestone in the history
of the electricity power system, but
also an unforgettable memory for
Electrical Engineering alumni from

the earlier years. During the colonial
period, the generalization of the electric
power system in Taiwan was initiated.
Ever since then, the university has
always taken part in the development
of power technology in the country.
The university’s alumni, faculty, and
students not only played an important
role in the forming of the hydroelectric
power plant at Sun Moon Lake, which
was constructed in the 30s, but also
participated in repairing the country’s
power system after WWIl. Here in NCKU,
the Edison-Hopkinson Dynamo stands
as the pillar of inspiration for those who
sought, and continue to seek, the new
age of electricity.
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Bt — ORI ENEER
(The Edison-Hopkinson Dynamo)
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The Shimadzu Mechanism Models

A set of Shimadzu Mechanism Models
are displayed in the Historical Gallery
of the Department of Mechanical
Engineering. From the Japanese
Colonial Period all the way to the post-
war era, these mini-size mechanism
models were used as the teaching
materials for mechanical principles and
manual machinery.

Around 1870, Germany had begun the
mass production of mechanism models.
By the end of the 19th century, the
Shimadzu Company introduced these
models in Japan, and started duplicating
these tiny machines. When the Japanese
government organized engineering
academies in Taiwan, (including the

predecessors of Taipei Tech, NCKU,
and the College of Engineering in NTU),
these schools all purchased teaching
tools from Shimadzu. Therefore, besides
NCKU’s collection of 55 models, NTU
and Taipei Tech each own a collection
of 52 and 12 models respectively.

These models on the wall of the
Mechanical Engineering Department are
truly one of the most valuable cultural
assets both for the department and for
the university.
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HHTESAZBRN EREEEE

(The Shimadzu mechanism models in the M.E. Department)
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UH-1H BEF## (The UH-1H Helicopter)




I The UH-1H Helicopter

Placed on the lawn of Tzu-Chiang
Campus, the UH-1H helicopter (#NA
506) is a gift from the National
Airborne Service Corps to the
Department of Aeronautics and
Astronautics in 2017.

Nicknamed "0ld U,” the helicopter had
officially retired after its last rescue
mission in 2017. At 8:00 am, December
12, 2017, it took off from Taitung and
landed in NCKU at 9:55 am, where the
faculty, students, and the media had
been anticipating its arrival.

08 B3KE Tzu-Chiang Campus

When the helicopter was handed
to the university, it was in perfect
condition. For a helicopter that had
spent its lifetime in rescue missions,
spending its last days in an academic
environment for students to acquire
knowledge on aircraft structure may
have been the most ideal retirement
plan.
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(The old Lecture Hall of Tainan Garrison Hospital, built in 1937)
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FERBRRREER
(The old Administration Building of Tainan Garrison Hospital)

I The Medical Facility of the Japanese Imperial Army

The buildings of the Department of
Taiwanese Literature on Li-Hsing Campus
were originally the medical buildings
of the Tainan Garrison Hospital of the
Japanese Army, renamed as “804 Army
Hospital” after the war. At the beginning
of the twentieth century, the trend of
naturopathy began to rise. This promotes
a naturalistic urban lifestyle, which
opposes the generalization of medication
on health issues. Today, Li-Hsing Campus
located just across street from the Tainan
Park, was chosen as the perfect spot for
the NCKU hospital under the naturopathy
trend.

Built from 1916 to 1917, the Tainan
Garrison Hospital was a classic pavilion
type hospital, which divided the wards
according to their functions, with each

ward connected by a roofed corridor. In
this manner, every part of the building
enjoys great ventilation and sunlight.
This design was common for buildings
from the third phase of construction
of the permanent barracks. To reduce
direct sunlight, most of them were built
with elevated slabs and corridors at the
south. At the facade, the fair-faced bricks
of the arch porch, along with a precious
cypress roof from Alishan are still visible.
The dormer and copper vent tower on
top required much workmanship. Three
of the buildings were wards with floor-to-
ceiling windows, which increased cross
ventilation, and are perfect green building
examples for the climate of Taiwan.

30



BEuAMARKEN EEESB®FM  NCKU Cultural Assets & Heritage Sites Guide Book

| BhRE sanp2k

IR SRR BEREE
Bl B 2011 fERKA > AR EE —FELL
SRR SRR R R
Bl > thERWE S RSREEAA
il o

TEEBTFXEEASTHER=TER
CENERBEZT  HRARES

AMBEREBRSUSELRETH
5 BEAREYNERRT L BB
BRAIBENRILEHEE - REHE - BE

iR EESLCEEERLRMEF

F o BE - ENEAGRMENHER
AREE > WMEZENZHRERBR
TMETE=EEIS EEWH ﬁE*&ﬁ%E%ﬁ
BT - £E LEED B R B EE
FoRE 0 2011 FthiES TR uke ﬁﬂ:
THEREMLRTE) KR

BENFEESHATE > RIIEUAN
R ZFAAR > ECEEE RBM R
% - BREXFEME MEEHEAL K
REEZIEE » HUFEHEBAZREAR
IRzl o

I The Magic School Of Green Technologies

81

The Y.S. Sun Green Building Research
Center—-The Magic School of Green
Technologies was completed in 2071.
The carbon neutral building surrounded
by greenery is not only the first zero-
carbon building in Taiwan, but also
the world’s first education center for
subtropical green building.

Donated by Delta Electronics
Foundation. along with over thirty
domestic enterprises, the building’s
green magic was accomplished through
the extensive research conducted by
a team of scholars led by Prof. Lin
Hsien-Te from NCKU Architecture
Department. The natural ventilation,
facility reduction, renewable energy,
and the green roof, along with the
landscaping of subtropical forest and
ponds incorporated in the design have

achieved the zero-carbon goal. Besides
the Taiwan Ecology, Energy, Waste
Reduction and Health (EEWH) Diamond
certification, this Green Magic School
also achieved the Leadership in Energy
and Environmental Design (LEED)
Platinum certification from the U.S.
Green Building Council in 20711.

Externally, elements of ark cover the
building. Internally, a massive relief
mural titled "Noah's Ark” consolidates
the theme correspondingly. Made out of
driftwood from Typhoon Morakot, the
mural created by indigenous Paiwan
artists Lavuras Matilin and his son
stands as a reminder for people of this
land to care for nature, and cherish the
planet.
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(The exhibition hall of Magic School of Green Technologies )
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I The Aircrafts on Campus

A number of aircrafts are on Gui Ren
Campus. This includes F-100 Super
Sabre, F-104 Starfighter, and the
trainer aircraft PL-1B. These retired
aircrafts carry the mission of inspiring
faculty and students in NCKU to
envision the future of Astronautical
Engineering.

The F-100 Super Sabre, which
contributed immensely in the Vietnam
War and Taiwan Straits standoff, was
designed and manufactured by North
American Aviation Inc.

On the other hand, F-104 Starfighter,
designed and manufactured by
Lockheed Corporation, made its
maiden flight on February 17,

10 BR{H#E Gui-RenCampus

1854, and was imported to Taiwan
in 1860 for its Mach 2 supersonic
performance and high-altitude
inception capacity. For decades, F-104
had faithfully guarded the Taiwan
Strait.

PL-1B, originally designed by Ladislao
Pazmany, is a single-engine propeller
driven two-seat light aircraft. In
1968, the government purchased its
manufacturing rights from Pazmany
and started developing its own
models. This first model was named
Cheihshou, and served as a beginner
trainer aircraft of the air force of
Taiwan.

F104 230E

4% (Starfighter)
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Hydraulics Laboratory

Founded in 1950, the Tainan Hydraulics
Laboratory of NCKU was one of the
two earliest hydraulic engineering
research institutions in Taiwan,
which were established to conduct
river/focean hydraulic modeling for
hydraulic constructions. Soon after its
establishment, the university partnered
with Keelung Port on the simulation of
its outer port development. Thenceforth,
research on coastal and marine
engineering have always been a major
focus of the laboratory. The earliest lab is
now a track engineering laboratory of the
Department of Civil Engineering on Cheng-
Kung Campus.
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In 1998, the facility was relocated to the
new An-Nan Campus, where sets of large-
scale hydraulic engineering laboratory
equipment including the world’s largest
wave basin and second largest wave
flume are implemented. They are capable
of performing all kinds of wave kinetic
simulation for research purposes. After
the 2004 Indian Ocean earthquake and
tsunami, Japan’s Fuji TV came to use
the wave flume to film a simulation
of the tsunami to publicize tsunami
preparedness.
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The rewilding of a live stranded Indo-Pacific bottlenose dolphin rescued in 2022.
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I Marine Biology and Cetacean Research Center

Starting from 1993, NCKU Biology
Department {now Department of Life
Science), has been working on dead
cetacean stranding with the government.
In 2000, the university initiated the work
of rescuing live stranded cetaceans
with other academic institutions and
civil organizations. Later in 2009, the
university established the Marine
Biology and Cetacean Research Center.

The purpose of the research center is
not only to rescue stranded cetaceans
and sea turtles, but also to conduct
research, courses, and services on the
sustainability of cetaceans and other
marine life. By engaging the public,
the university aims to raise awareness
on marine conservation, and keep the

ocean sustainable for the planet.

Thus, in addition to close cooperation
with domestic and international
institutions to enhance both academic
and pragmatic knowledge on marine
biology and marine conservation, the
center also trains researchers in raising
awareness by stepping into both rescue
missions and classrooms. Moreover, to
cast a wider net on the conservation of
cetaceans and other marine animals, the
research center has continually advised
civil service departments concerning
relative policies.

>
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The rewilding of a live stranded Risso's dolphin, which successfully recovered after three

months of treatment in 2020.
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